
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 

 
 
 

January 10, 2024 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Ridgewood Trails  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.ridgewoodtrailscdd.com 

 
January 3, 2024 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Ridgewood Trails Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Ridgewood Trails Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday, January 10, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge Amenity Center, 
1667 Azalea Ridge Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida 32068.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 

 
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comments (for agenda items listed below) 
  
 III. Organizational Matters 
  A. Acceptance of Resignation from Supervisor Barnhouse 
 
  B. Discussion of Board of Supervisors Vacancy Announcement 
 
 IV. Discussion of CCSO Clay County Community Connect Update 
 
 V. Consideration of Fence Proposals 
 
 VI. Consideration of Playground Equipment Proposals 
 
 VII. Items Related to the District Engineer 
  A. Acceptance of Resignation from District Engineer  
 
  B. Consideration of Evaluation Criteria 
 
  C. Authorization for Staff to Issue RFQ 
 
 VIII. Staff Reports 

http://www.ridgewoodtrailscdd.com/


  A. Attorney – Memorandum Regarding Ethics Training 
 
 B.  Engineer  
         
 C.  Manager  
 
 D.  Operation Manager 
  
 E.  Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
 
   2. Landscape Inspection Report 
 
 IX. Supervisor’s Requests and Public Comments 
 
 X. Approval of Consent Agenda 
  A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 1, 2023 Meeting 
 
  B. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
 
 C. Assessment Receipt Schedule  
 
 D.  Approval of Check Register 
  
 XI. Next Meeting Scheduled for:  March 6, 2024 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge 

Amenity Center  
 
 XII. Adjournment 
 
 
Board Oversight 
Supervisor Nolte – Landscape 
Supervisor Genska – Security & Technology 
Supervisor Shroyer – Maintenance 
Supervisor Miller – Athletics 
Supervisor Barnhouse - Aquatics 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



From: William Barnhouse <wbarnhouse@yahoo.com> 
Subject: My position on the board. 
Date: November 30, 2023 at 11:29:15 AM EST 
To: Marilee Giles <mgiles@gmsnf.com> 
 
Good morning Marilee, I need to resign my position on the CDD board.  My last day 
in Florida will be December 22, 2023. I am moving back to Ohio to be closer to 
family. Thank you for all the support and guidance that you have provided to me.  
 
/R 
William.  
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

mailto:wbarnhouse@yahoo.com
mailto:mgiles@gmsnf.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Proposal
Date

10/2/2023

Proposal #

2310003

Customer

Ridgewood Trails CDD
3813 Great Falls Loop
Middleburg, FL 32068

Project Location

Ridgewood Trails
Pool Fence

Sterling Specialties, Inc
7000 US Highway 1 North, Ste 601
St. Augustine, FL  32095

Signature: Total

Additionally,  it is the responsibility of the property owner to locate all private utilities including but not limited to gas lines, irrigation, and satellite cables and
assumes responsibility for repair to any unmarked private utilities.  All materials remain property of Sterling Specialties Inc. until contract amount is paid in full.

Date:  ____________

Phone: 904-829-5006
Fax:     904-829-5008

Description

Furnish and install 684' of 6' Black Commercial 3 - rail Press Point aluminum fence with 1 - 48" and 1 - 60" wide walk gates.
**POOL GATES**

Option: Shorter Length 

596' of 6' Black Commercial 3 - rail Press Point aluminum fence with 1 - 48" and 1 - 60" wide walk gates. 
$29,898.00

_____________________________________

This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 10 days.  Any deviations from these specifications will be executed only upon written order, and
may become an extra charge over and above the below total.  All agreements are contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control.
Customer agrees that the prices, specifications and conditions listed herein are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. Sterling Specialties, Inc.  is authorized to
start and complete project as specified;  50% deposit due and balance upon completion. PLEASE NOTE THAT WE DO NOT ACCEPT AMERICAN EXPRESS
CARDS.  HOA REVIEW FEES WILL BE ADDITIONAL.  All past due balances are subject to service charges of 1.5% per month (18% annually), or the
maximum permitted by law. Should we have to refer your account to an attorney for collection, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all out of pocket
expenses, court costs and reasonable attorney's fees.

$34,132.00



Proposal
Date

10/5/2023

Proposal #

2310039

Customer

Ridgewood Trails CDD
3813 Great Falls Loop
Middleburg, FL 32068

Project Location

Ridgewood Trails
Pool Gate

Sterling Specialties, Inc
7000 US Highway 1 North, Ste 601
St. Augustine, FL  32095

Signature: Total

Additionally,  it is the responsibility of the property owner to locate all private utilities including but not limited to gas lines, irrigation, and satellite cables and
assumes responsibility for repair to any unmarked private utilities.  All materials remain property of Sterling Specialties Inc. until contract amount is paid in full.

Date:  ____________

Phone: 904-829-5006
Fax:     904-829-5008

Description

Furnish and install 1 - 59" wide walk gate to existing 4' black 2 - rail fence. **POOL CODE**

_____________________________________

This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 10 days.  Any deviations from these specifications will be executed only upon written order, and
may become an extra charge over and above the below total.  All agreements are contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control.
Customer agrees that the prices, specifications and conditions listed herein are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. Sterling Specialties, Inc.  is authorized to
start and complete project as specified;  50% deposit due and balance upon completion. PLEASE NOTE THAT WE DO NOT ACCEPT AMERICAN EXPRESS
CARDS.  HOA REVIEW FEES WILL BE ADDITIONAL.  All past due balances are subject to service charges of 1.5% per month (18% annually), or the
maximum permitted by law. Should we have to refer your account to an attorney for collection, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all out of pocket
expenses, court costs and reasonable attorney's fees.

$1,280.00



DarmataFence 
449 Arthur Moore Dr., Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Email: daniel@darmatafence.com 

Ph. 904.333.0981 
Fax 904.783.6530 
Submitted to 

address 

city, state 

phone no. 

email 

Site Specifications: 

-• 
jobsite 

address 

city, state 

Office notes 

o Proposal ______ _ 

o Invoice ______ _ 

Teardown: Yes No Difficulty: 1 • 2 • 3 • 4 • 5 Cable Locate: Yes No 

Slope: Yes No Fasteners: Pool Code: Yes No Gates Swing: 

Material Specifications: 

Deposit:($ ) with payments to be as follows 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. The work will be performed in accordance with the description 

and drawings above, in a workman like manner. 

Daniel L Darmata, Inc. offers a two-year labor warranty. Make checks payable to Daniel L Darmata, Inc. 

We do not assume liability for PT Pine Materials that spilt, Credit Card payments are subject to a 3% fee. 

crack or otherwise change shape overtime. 

Manufacturer's warranty will be provided at customer Thank You, 
request. Daniel Darmata and Annabel (Darmata) Carter 

Lifetime gate adjustments. 

10/06/23

Tara Lee for Azalea Ridge

3813 Great Falls Loop

Middleburg FL 32068

904-214-3346

ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com

Community Pool

Installation of 730' of 6'Tall Commercial Grade Black
Aluminum Fencing with (3) Pool Code Walk Gates

$40,500.00

6'Tall Commerical Grade Black Aluminum - Pressed Spear, 4 Rails, 2.5" Post

Out

*Quote includes installation of 3 walk gates with pool code
hardware, but does not include transfering the security locks
from the old fence or new security locks. We recommend 
Atlantic Security (904-743-8444) for this type of work.

20,250 (50%) balance on completion

Annabel Carter



Top Fence LLC
4507 Sunbeam Rd
Jacksonville, FL 32257
904-999-9779

Proposal For:

Azalea Ridge HOA

Community Pool

This proposal is for the specified fencing for Azalea Ridge HOA. Below will list the
specifications of material and scope of project.

● Remove and Haul Off 700 ft of Existing Aluminum Fencing
● Install 700 ft of 6 ft Black Aluminum (3 Rail) with Spear Top (Shown Below)
● Install Two 4 ft Wide Gates
● Install One 5 ft Wide Gate

Your Price Includes:

● Lifetime Warranty on Fence Material
● Our 30 Year Labor Warranty



1

Total cost of project as specified above = $29,500

Thank you for the opportunity to earn your business!

Devon K

Top Fence LLC

904-903-1231



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
DISTRICT ENGINEER PROPOSALS 

 
COMPETITIVE SELECTION CRITERIA 

 
1) Ability and Adequacy of Professional Personnel   (Weight: 25 Points) 
  

Consider the capabilities and experience of key personnel within the firm including certification, 
training, and education; affiliations and memberships with professional organizations; etc. 

 
2) Consultant’s Past Performance      (Weight: 25 Points) 
 

Past performance for other Community Development Districts in other contracts; amount of experience 
on similar projects; character, integrity, reputation, of respondent; etc. 
        

3) Geographic Location      (Weight: 20 Points) 
  

Consider the geographic location of the firm’s headquarters, offices and personnel in relation to the 
project. 

 
4) Willingness to Meet Time and Budget Requirements   (Weight: 15 Points) 
 

Consider the consultant’s ability and desire to meet time and budget requirements including rates, 
staffing levels and past performance on previous projects; etc.      
 

5) Certified Minority Business Enterprise    (Weight: 5 Points) 
 
Consider whether the firm is a Certified Minority Business Enterprise.  Award either all eligible points 
or none. 

 
6) Recent, Current and Projected Workloads    (Weight: 5 Points) 

 
Consider the recent, current and projected workloads of the firm. 

 
7) Volume of Work Previously Awarded to Consultant by District  (Weight: 5 Points) 

 
Consider the desire to diversify the firms that receive work from the District; etc. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR THE RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

RFQ for Engineering Services 
 
 The Ridgewood Trails Community Development District (“District”), located in Clay County, Florida, 
announces that professional engineering services will be required on a continuing basis for the District’s 
infrastructure improvements authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.  The engineering firm selected will 
act in the general capacity of District Engineer and will provide District engineering services, as required.   
 

Any firm or individual (“Applicant”) desiring to provide professional services to the District must: 1) 
hold applicable federal, state and local licenses; 2) be authorized to do business in Florida in accordance with 
Florida law; and 3) furnish a statement (“Qualification Statement”) of its qualifications and past experience on 
U.S. General Service Administration’s “Architect-Engineer Qualifications, Standard Form No. 330,” with 
pertinent supporting data.  Among other things, Applicants must submit information relating to: a) the ability 
and adequacy of the Applicant’s professional personnel; b) whether the Applicant is a certified minority 
business enterprise; c) the Applicant’s willingness to meet time and budget requirements; d) the Applicant’s 
past experience and performance, including but not limited to past experience as a District Engineer for any 
community development districts and past experience with the [Jurisdiction]; e) the geographic location of the 
Applicant’s headquarters and offices; f) the current and projected workloads of the Applicant; and g) the 
volume of work previously awarded to the Applicant by the District.  Further, each Applicant must identify the 
specific individual affiliated with the Applicant who would be handling District meetings, construction services, 
and other engineering tasks. 
 
 The District will review all Applicants and will comply with Florida law, including the Consultant’s 
Competitive Negotiations Act, Chapter 287, Florida Statutes (“CCNA”).  All Applicants interested must submit 
electronic copies of Standard Form No. 330 and the Qualification Statement by 12:00 p.m. on   
    to the attention of Marilee Giles (by email to: mgiles@gmsnf.com) (“District 
Manager’s Office”).   
 

The Board shall select and rank the Applicants using the requirements set forth in the CCNA and the 
evaluation criteria on file with the District Manager, and the highest ranked Applicant will be requested to 
enter into contract negotiations.  If an agreement cannot be reached between the District and the highest 
ranked Applicant, negotiations will cease and begin with the next highest ranked Applicant, and if these 
negotiations are unsuccessful, will continue to the third highest ranked Applicant. 

 
The District reserves the right to reject any and all Qualification Statements.  Additionally, there is no 

express or implied obligation for the District to reimburse Applicants for any expenses associated with the 
preparation and submittal of the Qualification Statements in response to this request.  

 
Any protest regarding the terms of this Notice, or the evaluation criteria on file with the District 

Manager, must be filed in writing, within seventy-two (72) hours (excluding weekends) after the publication of 
this Notice.  The formal protest setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is 
based shall be filed within seven (7) calendar days after the initial notice of protest was filed.  Failure to timely 
file a notice of protest or failure to timely file a formal written protest shall constitute a waiver of any right to 
object or protest with respect to aforesaid Notice or evaluation criteria provisions.  Any person who files a 
notice of protest shall provide to the District, simultaneous with the filing of the notice, a protest bond with a 
responsible surety to be approved by the District and in the amount of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00).  



 
 
Publish on:       



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



4877-6447-9130.1 

Kutak Rock LLP 
107 West College Avenue, Tallahassee, FL 32301 

850.692.7300 

Katie S. Buchanan 
850.692.7302 

Katie.Buchanan@KutakRock.com 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

MEMORANDUM 

Board of Supervisors, Ridgewood Trails Community Development 

District Katie Buchanan 

January 2, 2024 

Ethics Training Requirements 

Beginning January 1, 2024, all Board Supervisors of Florida Community Development 
Districts will be required to complete four (4) hours of Ethics training each year. The four (4) hours 
must be allocated to the following categories: two (2) hours of Ethics Law, one (1) hour of 
Sunshine Law, and one (1) hour of Public Records law. 

This training may be completed online, and the four (4) hours do not have to be 
completed all at once. The Florida Commission on Ethics (“COE”) has compiled a list of 
resources for this training. An overview of the resources are described below, and links to the 
resources are included in this memo. 

Each year when Supervisors complete the required financial disclosure form (Form 1 
Statement of Financial Interests), Supervisors must mark a box confirming that he or she has 
completed the Ethics training requirements. At this time, there is no requirement to submit a 
certificate; however, the COE advises that Supervisors keep a record of all trainings completed 
(including date and time of completion), in the event Supervisors are ever asked to provide proof 
of completion. The training is a calendar year requirement and corresponds to the form year. So, 
Supervisors will not report their 2024 training until they fill out their Form 1 for the 2025 year. 

Free Training Options 

The Florida Commission on Ethics’ (“COE”) website has several free online resources 
and links to resources that Supervisors can access to complete the training requirements. Navigate 
to that page here: Florida Commission on Ethics Training.1 Please note that the COE only 
provides free training for the two (2) hour Ethics portion of the annual training. However, the 
COE does provide links to free outside resources to complete the Sunshine and Public Records 
portion of the training. These links are included in this memorandum below for your ease of 
reference.

1 https://ethics.state.fl.us/Training/Training.aspx 

https://ethics.state.fl.us/Training/Training.aspx
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Training/Training.aspx
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Training/Training.aspx


 

4877-6447-9130.1  

Free Ethics Law Training 

The COE provides several videos for Ethics training, none of which are exactly two (2) hours 
in length. Please ensure you complete 120 minutes of Ethics training when choosing a 
combination of the below. 

State Ethics Laws for Constitutional Officers & Elected Municipal Officers (100 minutes) 
Click here: Kinetic Ethics  

Business and Employment Conflicts and Post-Public-Service (56 minutes) 
Restriction 
Click here: Business and Employment Conflicts  

Gifts (50 minutes) 
Click here: Ethics Laws Governing Acceptance of Gifts  

Voting Conflicts - Local Officers (58 minutes)1  
Click here: Voting Vertigo  

Free Sunshine/Public Records Law Training 

The Office of the Attorney General provides a two (2) hour online training course (audio 
only) that meets the requirements of the Sunshine Law and Public Records Law portion of 
Supervisors’ annual training. 
Click here to access: Public Meeting and Public Records Law  

Other Training Options   

4- Hour Course  

Some courses will provide a certificate upon completion (not required), like the one found from 
the Florida State University, Florida Institute of Government, linked here: 4-Hour Ethics  
Course. This course meets all the ethics training requirements for the year, including Sunshine 
Law and Public Records training. This course is currently $79.00   

CLE Course 

The COE’s website includes a link to the Florida Bar’s Continuing Legal Education online 
tutorial which also meets all the Ethics training requirements. However, this is a CLE course 
designed more specifically for attorneys. The 5 hours 18 minutes’ long course exceeds the 4-
hour requirement and its cost is significantly higher than the 4-Hour Ethics course provided by 
the Florida State University. The course is currently $325.00. To access this course, click here: 
Sunshine Law, Public Records and Ethics for Public Officers and Public Employees. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.   
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=U8JktIMKzyI
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Documents/Ethics/Images/ConflictandPost2017.mp4
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Documents/Ethics/Images/2017Gifts.mp4
https://ethics.state.fl.us/Documents/Ethics/Images/VotingConLocalOfficers2017.mp4
https://www.myfloridalegal.com/open-government/training
https://iog.fsu.edu/online-ethics
https://iog.fsu.edu/online-ethics
https://iog.fsu.edu/online-ethics
https://iog.fsu.edu/online-ethics
https://tfb.inreachce.com/SearchResults?q=sunshine%20law%2C%20public%20records&searchType=1
https://tfb.inreachce.com/SearchResults?q=sunshine%20law%2C%20public%20records&searchType=1


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

E. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



  

1/10/2024 

 
  

Azalea Ridge at 
Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 
Amenity Management Report 

Tara Lee 
AMENITY MANAGER 
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.  
 
 

 



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023  
 

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District 

 
Amenity Management Report 

January 10, 2024 
 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Tara Lee 
  Amenity Manager 
 
RE:  Azalea Ridge Amenity Management Report – January 10, 2024 
 
The following is a summary of items related to the field operations, maintenance, 
and amenity management of Azalea Ridge.  

 



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023  
 

Community Updates 

MAINTENANCE 
• Installed (4) door blinds at the Amenity Center. 
• Installed (3) commercial grade trash cans next to community mailboxes.  
• Replaced light up “EXIT” sign in breezeway.  
• Replaced all chipped, cracked and broken pool tiles at both pools.  
• Replaced damaged electrical outlet and outside cover at the fitness center.  
• Re-strapped damaged pool loungers/chairs. 
• Decorated Amenity Center and entrances for Christmas 
• Repaired and installed exhaust fans in the Amenity Center bathrooms.  
• Installed door louvers in pool bathrooms for ventilation.  
• Completed French Drain at pool pack. 

  
EVENTS 

• Kids DIY Christmas Event 
o Friday, December 1st from 6pm to 8pm at the Amenity Center Clubhouse. 
o Kids created magical Christmas ornaments. 
o Light snacks and juice were provided.  
o Roughly fourteen residents attended the event.  

• First Coast Vendor Village/Santa’s Workshop  
o Sunday, December 10th from 11am to 3pm.  
o Santa’s Workshop was a combined CDD/HOA event.  
o First Cost Vendor provided the community with music, food trucks, bounce 

house, and roughly twenty-five vendors.  
o Santa’s workshop provided pictures with Santa, face painting along with a 

reindeer making activity for the kids. Treat bags were handed out. Around 150 
bags were given out to the kids.  

o Receive positive feedback from the community.  
• Collected donations for Safe Animal Shelter 

o November 14th through December 20th residents were able to drop off 
donations at the Amenity Center Clubhouse.  

o Several residents donated new and gently used items. 
o Donations were dropped off at Safe Animal Shelter on December 21st.   

 
UPCOMING EVENTS 

• Spring Festival (combined CDD/HOA) event 
o Planning to start around the middle of January.  

 
ROOM RENTALS  

o Total number of rentals for November and December:  1 
o Total number of rentals tentatively scheduled for January and February:  0 
 

 

  



Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023  
 

 
 
 

  

 

Door louver insallation. 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 Completed Projects 

New EXIT sign. 

 

Installed a new electrical outlet & cover. 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023  
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

French Drain at pool pack. 
 

 
        

 Completed Projects 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023  

        
 
  
  
                

 Events 
Kids DIY Christmas 
Ornament 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023  

  Events 
First Cost Vendor Village & Santa’s Workshop 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023  

 
  Events 

First Cost Vendor Village & Santa’s Workshop 



 

Ridgewood Trails Operations Report – RMS 2023  

For a 
 
 
 
 
For any questions or comments regarding the above information please contact Tara Lee, 
Amenity Manager, at Ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com. 
 
 
 Respectfully, 

 
Tara Lee 

 

 
 

 

 Conclusion 

mailto:Ridgewoodtrailsmgr@rmsnf.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



 / 1 4

Quality Site Assessment
Prepared for: Ridgewood Trails CDD

General Information

Customer Focus Areas

DATE:

NEXT QSA DATE:

CLIENT ATTENDEES:

BRIGHTVIEW ATTENDEES:

Wednesday, Nov 22, 2023

Monday, Feb 19, 2024

 

Karen Fisher 



 / 2 4

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Ridgewood Trails CDD

Clubhouse and focal
areas are looking sharp
ahead of the holiday.

Community message
board area is being well
maintained.

Pocket parks throughout
are looking great, trash
and weed free.

Turf is looking great, ant
piles have been treated
throughout.

1 2

3 4

1

2

3

4



 / 3 4

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Ridgewood Trails CDD

The crew is keeping
Juniper beds clean and
trimmed of the sidewalks.

The crew will remove
dead juniper on the next
detail rotation.

Crew is on top on edging
harder to reach areas.

Mowing schedule is in
rotation and tree rings
are well manicured
throughout.

5 6

7 8

5

6

7

8



 / 4 4

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Ridgewood Trails CDD

Mail area on Green River
Place is in neat order.

The crew is on top of
sectional trimming and
beds are neat and weed
free throughout.

JEA station is being well
maintained.

Walking path through the
community is clean, trash
free and blown off.

9 10

11 12

9

10

11

12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
RIDGEWOOD TRAILS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Ridgewood Trails Community 

Development District was held Wednesday, November 1, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea Ridge 

Amenity Center, 1667 Azalea Ridge Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Marty Genska Chairman 
 Jacqui Proctor Miller Vice Chairperson by telephone 
 William Barnhouse Supervisor 
 Dennis Schroyer Supervisor 
 Michael Weatherbee Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Marilee Giles District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel by telephone 
 Jay Soriano GMS 
 Tara Lee RMS 
 

 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the November 1, 2023 meeting.   

 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Ms. Giles called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and called the roll.   

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments  

 Mr. Wright’s comment card, I would like to find out if it is possible to donate a set of 40-

pound dumbbells to the gym. 

 Mr. Soriano stated I prefer to purchase that type of equipment to get a commercial grade, 

but we can check them out and if they are good quality and we are not concerned we can put them 

in the gym.   

 Ms. Mosley’s comment card, community yard sale, as a Freedom resident where can I set 

up a table to participate in the community yard sale.     



November 1, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

2 

 Mr. Soriano stated I will leave it up the board, it is a small enough neighborhood they can 

use this area, your parking lot, but my concern is you open the door you end up having 15 or so 

families that want to come up here.   

 Mr. Genska stated generally the community yard sale is limited to the homes, I can’t 

imagine a huge influx at the amenity center.  We will leave the location up to staff. 

 Ms. Giles read into the record a letter from Joanne Phillips, copy of which is attached to 

the minutes of this meeting which dealt with speeding, more police presence and traffic calming 

devices. 

 Ms. Giles stated the board had directed staff about two years ago to look into a traffic 

calming survey and we did that.  I will read from the county’s traffic calming survey, how to 

request one.  It talks about you have to conduct a petition and the last bullet comment says, you 

must have 51% or more property owners sign that petition.  We didn’t get 51% participation from 

the residents.  I believe the HOA was going to try to do this again.   

 Mr. Schroyer stated it is not a board issue; that is a county road.  Unfortunately, it is up to 

all the residents and the HOA to go after the county and request the traffic study.  If it is warranted, 

the sheriff will send someone out to take care of it. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Fiscal Year 2022 Audit Report 

 Ms. Giles stated they did not identify any deficiencies in internal controls considered be a 

material weakness, there were no findings or recommendations in the prior year or current year.  

It is a clean audit. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Schroyer with all in 
favor the fiscal year 2022 audit was accepted. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Fence Proposals 

 This item tabled. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Suspension Letters 

 Ms. Buchanan stated generally we ask if anyone is present in the audience that is affected 

by this suspension.  We have staff lay out the facts as they understand them then give the affected 

party the opportunity to present their case.  Once the facts are established the board will discuss 



November 1, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

3 

amongst themselves whether the suspension has been sufficiently served, whether they determine 

alternatives to what was initially imposed or there are additional actions the board would like to 

take.  When you are considering consequences, we like to be consistent in the way we apply our 

policies and protocols.   

 Staff outlined the incident, one of the parents spoke on behalf of her children and after 

discussion the board took the following action: 

 

It was the consensus of the board to suspend the Conner twins and 
the Ferguson minor for three months with time served. 

 

 Staff outlined the incident and indicated that this individual used abusive language, 

profanity and aggressive behavior such that another adult mail had to restrain him. 

 After discussion the board took the following action: 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Schroyer seconded by Mr. Genska with four in 
favor and Mr. Barnhouse opposed the suspension for the Lang boy 
was 12 months considering the time served. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2024-01 
Amending the Fiscal Year 2023 General Fund 
Budget 

 Ms. Giles stated we went over budget by $1,626 and anticipating that we have a few more 

invoices coming in we are amending the budget to $564,440. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Barnhouse with all in 
favor Resolution 2024-01 was approved. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

B. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 



November 1, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

4 

 C. Manager  

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 D. Operation Manager’s Report 

 Mr. Soriano presented a quote from Black Creek Electrical for ventilation fans for the 

bathrooms in the amount of $2,371.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Weatherbee with all 
in favor staff was directed to negotiate with Black Creek Electrical 
for the ventilation fans in an amount not to exceed $2,000.   

 

E. Amenity Manager 

1. Report 

 Ms. Lee gave an overview the amenity management report, copy of which was included in 

the agenda package. 

 

2. Landscape Inspection Report 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Requests and Public Comments 

 Mr. Schroyer asked have we had the Sheriff monitor what was needed to tie into the 

sheriff’s system? 

 Mr. Soriano stated we talked to them before and our cameras were not compatible to their 

system.  If we want to move forward and use the subscription we can but we need to wait until 

they finish that. 

 Mr. Schroyer stated I think it is a good idea to pursue it again due to the issues we are 

experiencing. 

 Mr. Soriano stated if you are not opposed to going with the subscription, which is an added 

cost, I will do that. 

 Ms. Giles stated I will take that on. 

 Ms. Miller asked can you have the electrical in the pond turned off? 



November 1, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

5 

 Mr. Soriano stated September was pretty warm and my concern was the very last pond did 

build up a good amount of muck, now that it is cold, it is fine.  Shutting it off we did see a difference 

in the movement.   

 Ms. Miller asked will it save a good amount of money if you only ran it in the summer? 

 Mr. Soriano stated if we used it three or four moths we are not going to save as much as 

keeping it off for the whole year, the problem is you are looking at a few hundred dollars.  We 

have to worry when we start nickel and diming everything that may create a future problem.  We 

are going to turn the fountains back in the summer because the residents will complain if it starts 

to build up too much. 

 Ms. Giles stated I have a comment card from Ms. Russ; the large pond behind Warm 

Springs Way needs to be mowed. 

 Mr. Soriano stated they are now doing every other week.  I will look at it. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 6, 2023 Meeting 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Weatherbee with all 
in favor the minutes of the September 6, 2023 meeting were approved 
as presented. 

 

 B. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 

 C. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 D. Approval of Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Genska seconded by Mr. Barnhouse with all in 
favor the consent agenda items were approved. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Meeting Scheduled for Wednesday, 
January 10, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. at the Azalea 
Ridge Amenity Center, 1667 Azalea Ridge 
Boulevard, Middleburg, Florida 

 Ms. Giles stated the next meeting is scheduled for January 10, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. in the 

same location. 

 



November 1, 2023 Ridgewood Trails CDD 

6 

On MOTION by Mr. Schroyer seconded by Mr. Genska with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



Ridgewood	Trails
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
November	30,	2023



1

2-3

4-5

6

7

8

9

10

Long Term Debt Summary

Assessment Receipt Schedule

Table of Contents

Balance Sheet

General Fund Income Statement

Month to Month

Capital Reserve Fund Income Statement

Debt Service Fund Series 2007A Income Statement

Capital Projects Fund Series 2007A Income Statement



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

TOTALS
	 GENERAL	 CAPITAL	RESERVE DEBT	SERVICE CAPITAL	PROJECT GOVERNMENTAL
	 FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

ASSETS:   

CASH $72,866 $170,879 --- --- $243,745
INVESTMENTS - STATE BOARD $683 --- --- --- $683
INVESTMENTS - US BANK - GENERAL FUND $94,012 --- --- --- $94,012
INVESTMENTS - STATE BOARD - CAPITAL RESERVE --- $40,520 --- --- $40,520

INVESTMENTS ---  
Reserve A --- --- $10,122 --- $10,122
Revenue A --- --- $2,717 --- $2,717
Deferred Costs --- --- --- $1,158 $1,158

DEPOSITS $2,803 --- --- --- $2,803

TOTAL ASSETS $170,364 $211,399 $12,840 $1,158 $395,761

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $47,187 $2,500 --- --- $49,687
ACCRUED EXPENSES $2,652 --- --- --- $2,652

TOTAL LIABILITIES $49,839 $2,500 $0 $0 $52,339

FUND BALANCES:
     UNASSIGNED $117,722 --- --- --- $117,722
     NONSPENDABLE $2,803 --- --- --- $2,803
     ASSIGNED $0 --- --- --- $0
     ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL RESERVE $0 $208,899 --- --- $208,899
     RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE --- --- $12,840 --- $12,840
     RESTRICTED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS --- --- --- $1,158 $1,158
    
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $120,525 $208,899 $12,840 $2,317 $343,422

TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY $170,364 $211,399 $12,840 $1,158 $395,761

November 30, 2023

1



 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET	 THRU	11/30/23 THRU	11/30/23 VARIANCE

REVENUES: 
Assessments - Tax Roll $612,477 $68,143 $68,143 $0
Interest Earned/Misc. Income $2,000 $333 $829 $496
Rental Revenue $2,200 $367 $1,250 $883    
TOTAL REVENUES $616,677 $68,843 $70,222 $1,379

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:
Supervisor Fees $8,000 $1,333 $1,000 $333
FICA Expense $612 $102 $77 $26
Engineering $3,000 $500 $0 $500
Assessment Roll $5,576 $5,576 $5,576 ($0)
Arbitrage $600 $0 $0 $0
Dissemination $1,060 $177 $177 $0
Attorney $20,000 $3,333 $3,689 ($355)
Annual Audit $3,270 $0 $0 $0
Trustee $5,650 $1,129 $1,129 $0
Management Fees $48,416 $8,069 $8,069 ($0)
Information Technology $1,908 $318 $318 $0
Website Maintenance $1,272 $212 $212 $0
Telephone $350 $58 $29 $29
Postage (1) $800 $133 $78 $55
Printing & Binding (1) $1,500 $250 $132 $118
Insurance $8,094 $8,094 $7,726 $368
Legal Advertising $1,800 $300 $46 $254
Other Current Charges $907 $151 $0 $151
Office Supplies $100 $17 $1 $16
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $113,089 $29,928 $28,434 $1,494

AMENITY CENTER
Insurance $29,198 $29,198 $15,070 $14,128
Amenity Manager $67,416 $11,236 $11,236 $0
Facility Assistant $5,000 $833 $673 $160
General Facility Maintenance $12,190 $2,032 $1,064 $967
Repairs & Replacements $25,000 $4,167 $2,263 $1,904
Lifeguards $18,385 $0 $0 $0
Pool Maintenance $17,876 $2,979 $2,979 $0
Pool Chemicals $17,798 $2,966 $2,571 $396
Water & Sewer $15,525 $2,588 $1,704 $884
Electric $16,100 $2,683 $1,698 $985
Internet/Cable $6,451 $1,075 $1,037 $39
Janitorial $11,218 $1,870 $1,870 $0
Janitorial Supplies $2,500 $417 $68 $349
Security System $8,797 $1,466 $2,943 ($1,477)
Refuse Service $2,709 $452 $478 ($26)
Special Events $5,000 $800 $800 $0
Pool Permit $475 $0 $0 $0
Pest Control $1,000 $167 $180 ($13)
Capital Reserve $38,680 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $301,318 $64,928 $46,633 $18,295

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

For the Period Ended November 30, 2023

2



 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET	 THRU	11/30/23 THRU	11/30/23 VARIANCE

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

For the Period Ended November 30, 2023

EXPENDITURES:

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE:
Operations Management $24,325 $4,054 $4,054 ($0)
Access Cards $1,000 $167 $0 $167
Electric $5,000 $833 $379 $454
Water $8,300 $1,383 $1,447 ($64)
Repairs & Maintenance $18,200 $3,033 $1,059 $1,974
Landscape Maintenance $128,444 $21,407 $24,441 ($3,034)
Lake Maintenance $12,000 $2,000 $1,384 $616
Irrigation Repairs $5,000 $833 $0 $833

TOTAL GROUNDS MAINTENANCE $202,269 $33,712 $32,765 $946

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $616,677 $128,568 $107,832 $20,736

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 ($37,610)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $158,135

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $120,525

(1)  Includes cost for mailed notice to Freedom Neighborhood.

3



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

MONTH TO MONTH
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP TOTAL

REVENUES:
Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $68143 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $68,143
Interest Earned/Misc. Income $553 $276 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $829
Rental Revenue $1000 $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,250
TOTAL REVENUES $1,553 $68,669 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70,222 

EXPENDITURES: ADMINISTRATIVE
Supervisor Fees $0 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000 
FICA Expense $0 $77 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $77 
Engineering $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Assessment Roll $5,576 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,576 
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Dissemination $88 $88 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $177 
Attorney $3,689 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,689 
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Trustee $1,129 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,129 
Management Fees $4,035 $4,035 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,069 
Information Technology $159 $159 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $318 
Website Maintenance $106 $106 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $212 
Telephone $0 $29 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $29 
Postage (1) $72 $6 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $78 
Printing & Binding (1) $78 $53 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $132 
Insurance $7,726 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,726 
Legal Advertising $46 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46 
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Office Supplies $1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1 
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175 
ADMINISTRATIVE TOTALS $22,880 $5,554 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,434

EXPENDITURES: AMENITY CENTER
Insurance $15,070 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,070 
Amenity Manager $5,618 $5,618 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,236 
Facility Assistant $594 $80 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $673 
General Facility Maintenance $1,064 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,064 
Repairs & Replacements $1,775 $488 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,263 
Lifeguards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Pool Maintenance $1,490 $1,490 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,979 
Pool Chemicals $1,244 $1,326 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,571 
Water & Sewer $827 $877 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,704 
Electric $858 $840 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,698 
Internet/Cable $508 $529 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,037 
Janitorial $935 $935 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,870 
Janitorial Supplies $68 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $68 
Security System $415 $2,528 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,943 
Refuse Service $227 $251 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $478 
Special Events $0 $800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $800 
Pool Permit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Pest Control $90 $90 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $180 
Capital Reserve $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
AMENITY CENTER TOTALS $30,782 $15,851 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $46,633

4



RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

MONTH TO MONTH
OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP TOTAL

EXPENDITURES: GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
Operations Management $2,027 $2,027 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,054 
Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Electric $189 $190 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $379 
Water $660 $787 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,447 
Repairs & Maintenance $1,059 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,059 
Landscape Maintenance $13,737 $10,704 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,441 
Lake Maintenance $692 $692 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,384 
Irrigation Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

GROUND MAINTENANCE TOTAL $18,365 $14,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $32,765

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $72,028 $35,804 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $107,832

EXCESS REV/(EXP) ($70,475) $32,865 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($37,610)

5



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
CAPITAL RESERVE

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

1
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 11/30/23  THRU 11/30/23 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Capital Reserve Transfer In $38,680 $0  $0 $0
Interest Income $1,300 $217  $378 $161

    
 TOTAL REVENUES $39,980 $217 $378 $161

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Reserves $60,000 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Amenity Improvement Project $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Curent Charges $600 $100 $0 $100
Repair & Replacement $10,000 $1,667 $0 $1,667

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $70,600 $11,767 $0 $11,767

OTHER SOURCES AND USES:

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) ($30,620) $378

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $180,691 $208,521

FUND BALANCE - Ending $150,071 $208,899

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

For the Period Ended November 30, 2023

6



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE FUND - 2007A

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

1
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 11/30/23  THRU 11/30/23 VARIANCE

 
REVENUES:
Assessments - On Roll $13,359 $1,486 $1,486 $0
Interest Income $250 $42  $123 $82

    
TOTAL REVENUES $13,609 $1,528 $1,610 $82

EXPENDITURES:

Interest Expense - 11/1 $3,673 $3,673 $3,673 $0
Interest Expense - 5/1 $3,673 $0 $0 $0
Principal Expense - 5/1  $5,000 $0 $0 $0

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $12,345 $3,673 $3,673 $0

OTHER SOURCES AND USES:

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $1,264 ($2,063)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $5,052 $14,903

FUND BALANCE - Ending $6,316 $12,840

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

For the Period Ended November 30, 2023

7



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND  - 2007A

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes of Fund Balance

1
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 10/31/22  THRU 10/31/22 VARIANCE

 
REVENUES:

Interest Income $0 $0  $10 $10
    

TOTAL  REVENUES $0 $0 $10 $10

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Projects $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES AND USES:

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 $10

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $1,149

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $1,158

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

For the Period Ended November 30, 2023

8



Series 2007A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

Interest Rate: 5.650%
Maturity Date: 5/1/2038
Reserve Fund Definition:
Reserve Fund Requirement (6.949% of Outstanding Bonds): $9,034
Reserve Fund Balance: $10,122

Bonds outstanding - 6/1/2019 $150,000
Less:  May 1, 2020 (Mandatory) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2021 (Mandatory) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2022 (Mandatory) ($5,000)
Less:  May 1, 2023 (Mandatory) ($5,000)

Current Bonds Outstanding $130,000
 

Ridgewood Trails 
Community Development District

Long Term Debt Report

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



ASSESSED
# UNITS 

ASSESSED

SERIES 2007A 
DEBT ASMT 
ASSESSED

FY23 O&M 
ASSESSED

TOTAL 
ASSESSED

NET  TAX ROLL ASSESSED 691 13,358.77           612,487.98        625,846.75        

TOTAL NET ASSESSMENTS 691 13,358.77           612,487.98        625,846.75        

CLAY COUNTY  DISTRIBUTION
DATE 

RECEIVED
TOTAL 

RECEIVED
SERIES 2007A 

DEBT RECEIPTS O&M RECEIPTS
1 11/6/23 1,545.88             33.00 1,512.88            
2 11/14/23 21,347.74           455.67 20,892.07          
3 11/28/23 46,735.45           997.57 45,737.88          
4 12/12/23 525,337.73         11,213.39          514,124.34        
5 - - 
6 - - 
7 - - 
8 - - 
9 - - 

10 - - 
11 - - 
12 - - 

TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIPTS          594,966.80           12,699.63         582,267.17 

TOTAL DEBT O&M
95.07% 95.07% 95.07%

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2024 Assessments Receipts Summary

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

PERCENT COLLECTED 
TOTAL PERCENT COLLECTED

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
Fund Date Check Numbers Amount

 

General Fund
 10/1/23 - 10/31/23 2530-2544 $42,110.60

$42,110.60

Autopayments
10/3/23 Clay Electric $1,411.30
10/4/23 Waste Pro $226.69
10/6/24 Comcast $224.67
10/6/23 CCUA $1,494.31
10/7/23 CCUA $1,487.27

10/12/23 Comcast $283.38
10/26/23 Newlane Finance $395.12
10/31/23 Clay Electric $1,047.11
11/3/23 Waste Pro $250.95
11/6/23 Comcast $224.67

11/13/23 Comcast $303.93
11/20/23 EFTPS $153.00
11/27/23 Newlane Finance $395.12
11/30/23 Clay Electric $42.00

$7,939.52

Total  $50,050.12

* Fedex invoices and Autopayments available upon request.

RIDGEWOOD TRAILS
Community Development District

Check Run Summary
10/1/2023 - 11/30/2023



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  1/03/24          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2023 - 11/30/2023 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/11/23 00119 10/01/23 8620067  202310 330-53800-46200                                     *           10,703.68
OCT LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                              10,703.68 002530
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00119 9/26/23 8619893  202309 330-53800-46301                                     *              165.66

ROTOR IRRIGATION REPAIR
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                                 165.66 002531

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00003 10/01/23 248      202310 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,034.67

OCT MANAGEMENT FEES
10/01/23 248      202310 310-51300-35200                                     *              106.00

OCT WEBSITE ADMIN
10/01/23 248      202310 310-51300-35100                                     *              159.00

OCT INFO TECH
10/01/23 248      202310 310-51300-31300                                     *               88.33

OCT DISSEM AGENT SRVCS
10/01/23 248      202310 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .78

OFFICE SUPPLIES
10/01/23 248      202310 310-51300-42000                                     *               72.00

POSTAGE
10/01/23 248      202310 310-51300-42500                                     *               78.45

COPIES
10/01/23 248      202310 320-57200-46000                                     *               75.23

GENERAL REPAIR ITEMS
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,614.46 002532

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00003 9/30/23 249      202310 310-51300-31400                                     *            5,576.00

FY24 ASSESS ROLL CERTIFY
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,576.00 002533

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00126 10/01/23 392407   202310 320-57200-34510                                     *               20.00

ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEM
HI-TECH SYSTEM ASSOCIATES                                          20.00 002534

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00136 10/02/23 10022023 202310 300-36900-10100                                     *              250.00

DEPOSIT REFUND
JOAQUIN GONZALES                                                  250.00 002535

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00117 9/29/23 3283138  202308 310-51300-31500                                     *              604.00

AUG GENERAL COUNSEL
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                    604.00 002536

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00042 10/01/23 128696B  202310 330-53800-46400                                     *              692.00

OCT LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC.                                            692.00 002537

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  1/03/24          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 10/01/2023 - 11/30/2023 ***       RIDGEWOOD TRAILS CDD

BANK A RIDGEWOOD TRAILS

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/11/23 00095 10/01/23 13129561 202310 320-57200-52100                                     *            1,244.16
OCT POOL CHEMICALS

POOLSURE                                                        1,244.16 002538
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00039 10/01/23 350      202310 320-57200-34200                                     *              934.83

OCT JANITORIAL SRVCS
10/01/23 350      202310 320-57200-46500                                     *            1,489.67

OCT POOL MAINT SRVCS
10/01/23 350      202310 330-53800-34000                                     *            2,027.08

OCT CONTRACT MANAGEMENT
10/01/23 350      202310 320-57200-46200                                     *            5,618.00

OCT FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                            10,069.58 002539

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/11/23 00118 9/21/23 72814128 202309 320-57200-34510                                     *              285.90

OCT SECURITY CAM MONITOR
VECTOR SECURITY INC                                               285.90 002540

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/27/23 00119 10/16/23 8639723  202310 330-53800-46300                                     *            1,377.69

OCT LANDSCAPE CONTINGENCY
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES,INC                               1,377.69 002541

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/27/23 00007 10/02/23 88854    202310 310-51300-54000                                     *              175.00

FY24 SPECIAL DISTRICT FEE
FL DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY                                   175.00 002542

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/27/23 00039 10/18/23 351      202309 320-57200-46100                                     *            1,618.00

SEP GEN FACIL MAIN
10/18/23 351      202309 330-53800-46000                                     *            2,925.70

SEP REPAIRS/REPLACE FIELD
10/18/23 351      202309 320-57200-46000                                     *            1,068.00

SEP REPAIRS/REPLACE AMEN
10/18/23 351      202309 320-57200-52200                                     *              349.06

SEP JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
10/18/23 351      202309 320-57200-52100                                     *              172.36

SEP POOL CHEMICALS
10/18/23 351      202309 310-51300-51000                                     *              109.35

SEP OFFICE SUPPLIES
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.                             6,242.47 002543

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10/27/23 00130 10/04/23 61783406 202310 320-57200-43200                                     *               90.00

OCT RODENT CONTROL
TURNER PEST CONTROL LLC                                            90.00 002544

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 42,110.60

RDGE --RIDGEWOOD--  BPEREGRINO
























































	Agenda
	III. A.        Acceptance of Resignation from Supervisor Barnhouse 
	V.        Consideration of Fence Proposals 
	VII. A.                                                              Acceptance of Resignation from District Engineer 
	B.        Consideration of Evaluation Criteria 
	C. Authorization for Staff to Issue RFQ
	VIII. A.        Attorney – Memorandum Regarding Ethics Training 
	E. 1.   Report
	2.         Landscape Inspection Report 
	X. A.                                                              Approval of the Minutes of the November 1, 2023 Meeting 
	            B.                                                              Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
	C.        Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	D.                                                                          Approval of Check Register 



